United Nations
UN LIBR« SPECTAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE

G ENE RAL . 2 10th meeting
ASSEMBLY T N held on
HIRTY-FOURTH SESSION Tuesday, 23 October 1979
HI - f‘A oHlTas at 3 p.m.
UN/D Ck"’ “‘LE\* I ‘iO'N New York

Official Records*

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 10th MEETING

Chairman: Mr. EL-CHOUFI (Syrian Arab Republic)

later: Mr. FIGUEROA (Argentina)

CONTENTS

AGERDA ITEM 50: UNITED NATIONS RELIEF AND WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES IN
THE NEAR EAST (continued)

* Ths record 1s subject to correction. Corrections should be mcorporated in a copy of Distr. GENERAL
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief,
Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550. A/ spc/ 3h/ SR.10
29 October 1979

Corrections will be 1ssued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for
each Commuttee. ORIGINAL: ENGLISH
T9-5TT72k
/



L/6PC/34/SR.10
Inglish
Page 2

The meeting ras called to order at 3.15 p.m.

AGENDA TITEIT 50: UNITED WATIONS RELILTF AWD WORKS AGEMCY FOR PALLSTINE RDFUGEES IN
THE WDAR EAST (continued)

1. ilr. van SUCHTELEN (Iletherlands) introduced the draft resolution contained in
document A/SPC/3L/L.6.

2, IMp. TUSEIBEH (Jordan) introduced the draft resolution contained in document
AJSPC/3L/T. 5.

3. His Government considered that the over-all response to General Assembly
resolution 33/112 C of 18 December 1978 left much to be desired, in view of the
plight of the nearly 1.8 million Palestinian refugees, particularly those eligible
for higher education and special training. Only a handful of States had responded
positively to the resolution, and even then the response had been on an extremely
limited scale. To those States and specialized agencies which had made some
commitment, he wished to express his deep appreciation., He hoped that all States

in a position to do so would provide concrete assistance to the Palestinian refugees
in diaspora by helping them to acquire the skills they needed in order to lead
independent lives instead of remaining in the refugee camps.

k. Their minimum education needs were being satisfied less and less, as reflected
in the reduced number of scholarships that had been offered for higher education in
the past six years. New offers fell far short of filling the gap. Almost

55 per cent of the Agency's budget was already allocated to education and that the
lower levels of schooling would be in serious Jeopardy unless the projected

550 million deficit in the Agency's allocations was reversed.

5. Drawing attention to the new proposal contained in operative paragraph 5 of
draft resolution A/SPC/34/L.5, he said that it referred to centres to be established
in areas with the greatest concentration of refugees. It had been included because
for a variety of reasons, some countries found it difficult to place stateless
refugees in their universities and others were reluctant to make direct contributions
to UNRUVA. The paragrarh wvas non-political and was designed to enable such States to
assist the refugees by establishing vocational training centres in the host
countries. The request, vhich was addressed to members of the various regional and
other groupings in the United Tations, was being made at a time when the universities
of Jordan were already granting substantial scholarship funds for the training of
Palestinian refugees.

6. Jir. AL-ATIYYAH (Iraq) said that the Palestinian people were living under
occupation or as refugees because of the Zionist invasion of Palestine and any
solution to their problem must take into account who was primarily responsible for
their plight. It was well known that the establishment of the Zionist State had led




A/SPC/3L/SE.10
Inglish
Page 3

(1r., Al-Atiyyah, Iraq)

to the displacement of the Palestinian people, as predicted by Theodor Herzl, the
Zionist leader, 50 years before its establishment and admitted by lloshe Dayan, the
Minister of Defence, in 1969. There was no truth in the claim made by the Israeli
representative that the Arab States were responsible for the exodus of the
Palestinian refugees; the Zionist information agencies were always trying to distort
the facts regarding the displacement of the Palestinians in order to promote the
resettlement of the refugees in other countries. He quoted an extract published in
The Mlew York Times from the memoirs of Yitzhak Rabin, the former Prime  idnister of
Israel, regarding the decision of the Zionist leaders to terrorize the Arabs of
Palestine into leaving the country in 19.48.

7. The adoption of resolutions endorsing the Zionist presence in Palestine in
1949 was made possible by the fact that the membership of the United lations at
that time consisted of imperialist or imperialist-controlled States. Uhen those
resolutions led to war and the displacement of a large segment of the Palestinian
people, those imperilaist States established UNRVA as a temporary instrument in the
hope that the refugees would eventually be resettled rather than returned to their
homeland. However, the expanded and more representative wembership of the United
Nations in the years that followed had recognized the national rights of the
Palestinian people. ULUAWA must, therefore, continue to receive support for its
humanitarian work until the Palestinian people were able to exercise their right to
self-determination in their independent State.

8. As a result of Zionist expansion, the numbers and problems of the refugees had
grown, aggravating UNDWA's finaneial crisis. An alternative must accordingly be
found to UNIFVA's dependence on voluntary contributions. Since the issue of the
Palestinian refugees could become a fuse which would ignite the whole of the IHiddle
Tast, the United Hations should shoulder the financial burdens involved in the
maintenance of minimum living standards for the refugees in pursuance of its peace-
keeping objectives.

9. UIMRVA's budget should be incorporated in the United ilations regular budget and
a scale of assessment should be established to determine the contributicns of lfember
States in accordance with their financial capacity. He was sure that the Arab
States would be more than willing to pay the contributions required. He found it
difficult to understand the objections of some States to the merging of the two
budgets, unless the wnderlying political objective was to maintain hegemony over
UIITWA in order to keep the Agency under constant threat of losing support. The
United States, for example, was in practice paying more in contributions to UNRVA
than it would pay under the scale of assessments applicable to the United iTations
budget.

10. A further possible objection, namely that the merging of the budgets might
subject UNRWA to political pressures, was groundless since the Agency's current
financial situation had already made it dependent on voluntary contributions and,
therefore, subject to political rather than humanitarian considerations. The only
way to free UIRWA from political pressures vas to free it from financial pressures

/oo



A/SPC/3L/SR.10
Inglish
Page L

(vir. Al-Atiyvah, Iraq)

by providing funds from the United lations rather than from individual States. The
suggestion that the oil-producing Arab States should assume UNRUA's financial burden
vas only a tactic for exonerating Israel from responsibility for the plight of the
refugees; it implied acquiescence in Zionist aggression. Since Unite~d HNations
resolutions had acted as a catalyst for the establishment of the Zionist entity but
had failed to guarantee Palestinian rights under the partition plan, the United
Wations should not be absolved from its political, moral and financial responsibility
towards the Palestinian people. Under the proposed merger of the two budgets, the
Arab States would, in any case, be increasing thelr contributions to UNEWA. The
Palestinian refugees themselves rejected the transfer of responsibility to the Arab
States as an attempt to force them to settle in countries other than Palestine.

11. Certain States sympathetic to the Palestinian cause might have reservations
regarding the merging of the budgets because of their limited financial resources.
However, under the scale of assessments, the additicnal contributions of the smaller
States would not exceed 0.1 per cent or a maximum of $16,000 for UIIRVA., A special
scale of assessments for UNRUA might be worked out in order to reduce or remove the
financial burden from the poorer countries by increasing the contributions of
countries able and willing to bear the extra cost. However, he was confident that
the smaller countries, which had achieved independence after a long struggle against
imperialism and racism, would be willing to contribute as an expression of
solidarity and support for the just cause of the Palestinian people.

12, Some friendly States might object because countries which had supported the
Palestinian cause were being asked to contribute as well as those which had been
responsible for the displacement of the Palestinians and were seeking their
resettlement. However, since UNRVA's services were needed, it was essential to
preserve the refugees from the political blackmail inherent in leaving their fate
in the hands of contributor States which might have political aims and ambitions in
the region.

13. In conclusion, he once again called for a solution to UNRWA's financial crisis
by the incorporation of the Agency's budget in the regular budget of the United
iTations. If necessary, the Secretary-General should be requested to establish a
group of experts to examine that proposal, submit appropriate alternatives and
prepare a feasibility study of the various proposals and the difficulties that might
impede their implementation.

1k, idr. Figueroa (Argentina) took the Chair.

15. iir. (IAH00D (Pakistan), speaking on a point of order, suggested that, in view
of the wvaluable information and practical suggestions contained in the statement
made by the representative of Iraq, that statement should be reproduced in extenso.

16. The CHAIRIAN said that, if he heard no objections, he would take it that the
Committee decided that the full text of the statement by the representative of Iraq
should be issued as a separate document.

17. It was so decided.




A/SPC/3L/3R.10
English
Page 5

18. ilr. MUSSA (Somalia) paid tribute to the work done by the former Commissioner-
General of UNRUA, and expressed confidence that the new Commissioner-General would
accomplish the difficult mission entrusted to him.

19. The problem of the Palestine refupees had been created by Israel and its
mentors, who had uprcoted and dispersed the Palestinians three decades earlier and
continued to deny them their inalienable rights to repatriation, self~determination
and national independence. UNEWA's humanitarian services were not and could not be
a substitute for the restoration of those rights: that could be achieved only by
the implementation of United Nations resolutions on Palestine. As host to hundreds
of thousands of refugees vwho had fled from persecution, genocide and denial of their
right to self-determination, Somalia knew only too well the suffering which refugees
had to undergo.

20. His delegation agreed that until a just and lasting settlement of the Palestine
refugee problem was achieved, UNRUA's services would remain indispensable. UIRWA's
chronic financial crisis required an in-depth appraisal if yet another catastrophe
in the lliddle East was to be averted. His delegation had given due consideration
to the alternatives open to the Agency, as described by the Commissioner-General,
and agreed that the only possible course in the present circumstances was to
continue to curtail the Agency's services to match available resources. At the
same time, however, it believed that the solution to UNRVA's financial crisis, lay
in placing the Agency's financing on a firmer and broader basis. The international
community had a solemn moral and political obligation to keep the Agency in
operation and to prevent a further cutback in its services. Any further reduction
in relief assistance, health care or education would be interpreted by the refugees
as yet another move by the international community to abandon thems.

21. His delegation therefore suvported the suggestion made on many occasions in
the Committee that UNRWA's entire expenditure should be met from the regular budget
of the United MNations, or the wages of its local employees should be paid by the
Organization. It alsc hoped that the Agency's headquarters would be relocated and
consolidated in the area of operations. His delegation wished to commend those
countries which had contributed generously to the financing of the Agency.

22, Mr. MUNRO (Canada) expressed regret at what he regarded as the unfortunate
politicization of the debate on UNRWA's activities. All ilember States were aware
that the issue had serious political implications, but there were other more
appropriate forums in which they could and would be discussed. The Committee's
present task was to review the latest report of the Commissioner-General of UNRWA
and to decide what action to take in the light of that report.

23. His country had always attached great importance to UNRWA's work in dealing
with one of the most obvious humanitarian concerns of the United Hations., All
llember States, whatever their views on the political issues involved in the
situation in the (dddle Dast, must recognize that that situation had brought human
tragedy to the Palestinians. His country had consistently taken concrete steps to
alleviate that tragedy by supporting the Agency, and had recognized the importance
of providing the Agency with adegquate resources to implement its programmes. The
Commissioner-General had made abundantly clear the financial constraints which
impeded the fulfilment of his mandate.

/ee.



A/SPC/34/8R,10
nglish
Page 6

(Mr. lunro, Canada)

2L, Canada was opposed to incorporating UIRITA's costs in the regular United Hatinns
budset, for it believed that the international community should show its concern for
the plight of the Palestinians by making voluntary contributions towards their
support and rehabilitation. His country had contributed, and would contribute even
more generously in the future, to that objective and only wished that other llember
States would adopt the same attitude and share more adeguately in the United

Nations common responsibility to alleviate the plight of the Palestinian refugees.

25. lir, MUBAREZ (Yemen) said that rarely in history had there been such a tragedy
as that which had befallen the Palestinian people. Iven colonialist régimes such
as that vhich had dominated the southern part of his own country had been motivated
only by the desire to extract profits from the territory and to exploit the labour
of the peoples of conquered lands. World zionism, hovever, unlike any other plot,
was predicated on the expulsion of the Palestinian people from their homeland by
all possible means of terrorism and the eradication of their culture and
civilization. Iver since the Zionist entity's occupation of Palestine in 1948, it
had tried to banish the Palestinian presence, even outside the occunied territories.
The news media carried regular reports about Israeli acts of aggression against
refugee camps and civilian targets in southern Lebanon.

26. The 19L7 General Assembly resolution on the partition of Palestine was one of
the blunders for which the whole world was still paying. That resolution had
created the racist, expansionist State of Israel, which had gone beyond the
frontiers set in 1947 by the United Nations and had made war on the neighbouring
Arab States with a view to annexing the whole of Palestine. The aggressive
aspirations of the Zionist entity had more than once posed the threat of another
world war. There was no need to remind the Committee that the Palestinian people
had been living in inhumane conditions in camps for over 30 years. UNRWA had been
established by General Assembly resolution 302 (IV) to provide essential services
to the Palestine refugees as an interim arrangement until such time as they could
return to their homes and property. That resolution had, undoubtedly, been
adopted as an affirmation of the responsibility of the States Members of the world
Organization towards the Palestinian people. But vhat was happening now, 30 years
later, was a cause for deep concern, despite the numercus resolutions adopted by
the General Assembly and the Security Council affirming the right of the
Palestinian people to return to their homes, their right to compensation for their
property and thelr right to self.-determination in their own land in accordance
with their free will and aspirations.

27. FEven the basic services of UNRJA were now in Jjeopardy, as was clear from the
Commissicner-General's revort (A/34/13). ILike earlier reports, it showed clearly
that the educaticon services and rations provided for the refugees had been
constantly decreasing and that, in any case, the services provided did not cover
all persons coming under the definition of “refugees®.

2d. The deficit in the Agency's budget was steadily increasing. His delegation
commended the United Hations on its efforts to fulfil its obligations towards the
Palestinian people, but appealed to all Member States, particularly those which

/.



A/SPC/34/SR.10
nglish
age T

(I'r, Ttubarez , Yemen)

had participated in the creation of the Palestinian tragedy, to make regular and
adequate contributions. Failure of ifember States to contribute to UITRIA
constituted a breach of the obligations incumbent on the international community
wnder many United Hations resolutions on the question of Palestine.

29, Tis delegation fully agreed that, as stated in the letter from the Permanent
Representative of Jordan to the United Tations addressed to the Secretary-General
(A/34/201), the contemplated eliminations and reductions in the Agency's services
would impinge on public security and order and political stability, not only in the
areas where refugees were living but throushout the 1liddle Tast.

30. Ilis delegation emphasized that the tragedy of the refugees was only the
humanitarian asvnect of the question of Palestine, which was first and foremost a
political issue, and that the services of UIRIA must not be regarded as a substitute
for a solution to that broader gquestion. Any solution must suarantee the
Palestinians' right to return to their homes or receive compensation for their
property and to build their independent State in accordance with relevant United
lations resolutiors anc the Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

31. Just as Zionist acts of aggression had been the cause of the diaspora of the
Palestine refugees, Israel’s acts of aggression amainst the camps now occupied by
those refugees, particularly in southern Lebanon, increased their daily sufferings,
exacerbating UMRYA's problems,

32. In defiance of contemporary morality and the spirit of the United Mations
Charter  at a time when the vorld was celebrating the International Year of the
Child, Palestinian children lacked all the hasic necessities, namely, shelter, food
and adequate nhealth and education services. DIven more important., they lacked
identity and lived with uncertaintyv as to the future. To provide care for the
Palestine refugees, ensure their return to their lands and property and give them
the opportunity to exercise their right to free self-determination, as laid down in
the resolutions and Charter of the United Wations, was a moral and nolitical
responsibility of all peoples and 3tates.

Lo

3. Ifr. Il-Choufi (Syrian Arab Republic) resumed the Chair.

IIr, DPINIES (Spain) paid tribute to the vork of the former Commissioner-General
T UJRWA and welcoined his successor.

[ORRUN]
=

35. ULRIVA symbolized the international community's support of a zzople which had
lost everything except its will to exist and its national identity. As a tenporary,
emercency solubion, it had enabled a part of the Palestinian people to survive
materially and to educate their children under the most adverse conditions.

36. Spain had for many vears been one of the main contributors to the Agency,
providing a total of 39 million in assistance. mainly food aid. or an annual
contribution of %1 million. In that connexion, he wished to point out that the
differences in value of Spain's annual contribution, as recorded in the

/.o



A/SPC/3L/SR.10
Inglish
Page G

(IIr. Pinies, Spain)

Commissioner-General’s report, were due to differences between international prices
for flour and prices on the Spanish market, from which the contribution was drawn.
Those figures should in any case be considered in the light of the fact that
Spain‘s contributions to other United Nations funds such as UNDP were not as high
as the 1 million it contributed to the Agency owing to the constraints imposed

by its economic situation,

37. The Agency's precarious financial situation threatened the continuance of some
of its services. The situation was all the more tragic because many countries
remained indifferent to the Agency’'s situation. Although some countries had made
special contributions and others had made major contributions for the first time

in 1979, the burden of the Agency's financing was still borne overwhelmingly by a
handful of countries. The undeniable fact that certain countries bore a historic
responsibility for the plight of the Palestine refugees, could not Jjustify the
indifference of others to the suffering of that people.

36. He did not mean to imply that his Government regarded the refugee problem as
a purely humanitarian matter. TFundamentally, the problem was a political one and,
in that connexion, he wished to recall that on the occasion of the recent visit
of Yasir Arafat to ladrid, the Spanish Government had reiterated in a communiqué
its conviction that peace could not be achieved in the [fiddle Tast without a
comprehensive, just and lasting solution based on the principles and resolutions
of the United Hations and the exercise by the Palestinian people of its
inalienable national rights.

39. IMr. ABOUL-HASR (Oman) said that it was clear from the Commissioner~General's
report (A/3L/13) that UNRVA was still suffering from the crises which had
precipitated a large-scale reduction of the services it provided to the Palestine
refugees . who had been driven out of their country by Israel, which had seized
their pronerty and deprived them of their legitimate rights, as established in
numerous international documents and United Jations resolutions. He commended the
Commissioner-General and his colleagues, on their work, but regretted that the

Agency vas still in a position to provide only a minimum of services.

40. Refugee status was not the only dilemma of the Palestinian Arab people. Other
problems which exacerbated the dilemma included the paralysis threatening UNRWA,
which, for a large proportion of refugees, was the only source of hope and
confidence in the international community. In addition to its financial deficit,
the Agency, together with the Palestinian and the Lebanese peoples, was suffering
the results of repeated Israeli acts of aggression in southern Lebanon and other
places where the Palestinian people had taken refuge. Paragraph 26 of the
Cormissioner--General's report (A/34/13) was adequate proof that Israeli terrorism
and agpression were a dally threat to the lives of many Palestinians. They
affected the Agency's operations and increased the already large burden of work
which 1t had to carry out with extremely limited financial resources.

1. The Commissioner-General had proposed two alternatives for solving the Agency's
financial crisis. The first would be to reduce the Agency'’s rate of expenditure
beginning with January 1980 to the level of the voluntary contributions anticipated
up to the end of 1930, which would mean a reduction of essential services for the

/.



A/SPC/3L/SR.10
“nglish
Page 9

(Mir, Aboul-Nasr, Oman)

refucees., Since the accommodation and health services were definitely below the
internationally accepted levels, such reductions must necessarily be made in the
field of education. As the Cowmmissioner-General said, in varagraph 21 of his
report (A/34/13), the refugees would interpret such action 'as, in their view,
another and vastly more significant move by the international community to
abanden the Palestinian people’.

b2, The second alternative was for the Agency to continue all operations until its
resources were approaching exhaustion and then to announce the cessation of all
operations from a given date unless additional income was forthcoming in time to
permit the Agency to continue. The second alternative would mean, quite simply,
that the international community was shirking its responsibility towards the
Palestinian people. It would unquestionably cause profound disappointment for
many generations and lack of confidence in the resolutions and commitments of the
United lations.

43, Teither of those alternatives would resolve the Agencv's financial crisis,
which called for stable long-term resources. The United Nations must play a
major role in finding such resources, and all the nations of the world, without
exception, must contribute to them. His delegation supported the proposals to
include the Agency's budget in the regular budget of the United Nations, as was
already done in the case of the salaries of the international employees of UIIRVA,

4h, Oman, like all Arab countries, gave all the assistance within its means to the
Palestinian people, in addition to its annual financial contribution to the
Acency's budzet. His delesation Joined the Secretary-General, the Commissioner-
General and the VUorking Group, in seeking additional funding for the Agency by
appealing to those Governments which had not made monetary contributions in the
past to participate in the financing of UNRVA, urzing those which had made
relatively small contributions to increase them and those which had contributed
generously tTo be even more generous.

k5, 1lis delegation considered it essential that the Agency's headquarters and
all its officers should be relocated in Lebanon as soon as possible, so that the
staff would be able to zive lmmediate attention to the refugees’ needs. In that
connexion, he expressed his Government's gratitude to Austria and Jordan for the
facilities which they had extended to UNRUA.

45, UNWRJA had been established as a temporary organ of the United HMations in 1950
in order to meet the needs of the Palestine refugees made homeless as a result of
the repeated acts of agpression committed by Israel since 1943, The international
community, which had permitted the establishment of Israel without the
establishment of a Palestinian Arab State, bore direct responsibility for

providing assistance to the Palestinian Arab people until such time as they
returned to their homeland. The material ald which UNRUA vas able to provide would
not resolve the refuree problem, because it vas basically a political issue arising
from the expulsion of the Palestinians from their homes and the usurpation of their
property. It was self-evident that the solution of the problem required that the
refugees be enabled to return to their homes and their property and to exercise
their right to self-determination in their own homeland.

/...



A/SPC/3L/S1.10
Inglish
Page 10

L. lir, ZAKEVIGIUS (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the course

of events in the "diddle Zast provided convincing evidence that the problem of the
Palestine refugees was a very political issue and could not be considered in
isolation from the larger Palestinian problem. TFailure to solve the latter and

the fact that tThe Falestinian Arabs vere deprived of their rights as a nation were
among the rvinary causes of 'iiddle East tension. The United lations had repeatedly
recognized the richt of the Arab population of Palestine to self-determination

and national independence, and their right to return to their homes and recover
theilr pronert:, inter alia in General Assembly resolution 33/28. Despite the

clear stand talen by the international community, however, as reflected in many
other resolutions of tae United Hations, the Palestinian problem remained unresolved
and the Palestinian people were still without rights.

L8, It was = vell known fect that the problem had arisen as a result of Israeli
aggression against the Areb countries and that Israel and those who supported
Israel's expansionist policies were to blame for the failure to solve it and for
the sufferings of many hundreds of thousands of Palestinian Arabs. A soluticn to
the problem was crucial to any general settlement in the liiddle East. To achieve
such a settlement, all the Arab territories occupied by Israel in 1967 would have
to be freed, the Palestinian Arabs would have to be assured the right to self-
determination and to the establishment of a State of their own, and the
independence and security of all States in the region would have to be guaranteed.
That had always been and that remained the position of the Soviet Union on the
Iliddle Bast problem.

ko, TIsrael bore primary responsibility for the growing tension in the Iiddle Tast,
but that responsibility must be shared by those who had supplied the aggressor with
veapons. The separate deal between Ecypt and Israel, far from constituting a
genuine settlement of the 1liddle Eastern problem, was an attempt to perpetuate the
Israeli occupation of Arab territories and to deprive the Palestinians of their
inalienable rights. The so-called "peace' treatv betveen Ercypt and Israel was
imbued with a spirit of hatred for the legal rights of the Arabs, and it vas small
vonder that it had been so harshly conderned in the international arena.

50. Having secured its position on one flank, Israel had been stepping up its
campaign to annex Palestinian Arab lands and carrying out acts of aggression
against neighbouring Arab States by means of artillery attacks and bombings vhich
brought death to many Lebanese civilians and Palestinian refusees.

51. In nerotiaticns over the so-called “autonomy for the Palestinians', Tsrael

had demonstrated that its idea of autonomy had nothing to do with the rights or
interests of the Palestinian Arabs, but vas desirned to reinforce Israeli rule over
occupied Palestinian lands and to Trevent the exercise of gelf-determination by the
Palestinian Arabs, vhose sole legitimate representative vas the Palestine Liberation
Organization (ILO). The only way of achievinz stable peace in the iiddle Dast was
hroush the esteblishment of an independent Palestinian State, not by granting the
"Palestinian autonomy'’ proposed by the participants in the Camn David agreements.

52. The just cause of the Palestinians continued to receive unflagging support
from the Soviet Union, as could be seen in a recent telegram addressed to PLO
leader, Yasir Arafat, by Chairman Leonid Brezhnev,

/..



A/SPC/3L/SR.10
En~lish
Pace 11

(ir. Zankeviéius. USSR)

53. He concluded by saying that the position of the Soviet Union on UIIRUA,
favouring retention of the voluntary system for financing the vork of the Agency,
remained unchanged.

54. Jir. VERCELES (Philippines) said that his delepation shared the deep concern
expressed by the new Commissioner-Ceneral and the Vorking Group on the TFinancing

of UNRVA about the Agency's chronic financial plight. The estimated deficit for
1979 was ©23.7 million, and the prospects for 1980 were extremely alarming, unless
substantial additional income could be obtained. UNRUA must have full support if
it was to continue to provide education, health care and relief services, including
food and shelter, to the Palestine refugees displaced by the fighting in 19LE.
Almost 2 million were registered with the Agency, not including people displaced

by the war in June 1967, althoush the General Assembly had also endorsed emergency
humenitarian assistance for that group. His delegation was therefore co--sponsoring
draft resolutions A/SPC/3L/L.U4 and L.6.

55. The alternatives described by the Commissioner-General - leening expenditure
within anticipated income by reducing operations, especially educational services,
or continuing services while risking bankruptey - were both unacceptable. The
only solution was substantially increased income., The Commissioner-General had
warned that any discontinuance of UNRVA's services would be seen as a failure

of the international community to meet its moral and political obligations tovards
the Palestinians. Pending a political solution to the Palestinian question,
UNRVA's humanitarian task must continue unimpeded under its mandate from the
General Assembly. His delegation therefore supported the urgent appeal of the
Commissioner~Ceneral and the Vorking Group to llember States to respond generously.
Those i.ember States vhich had not yet contributed to UNRUA should begin to do so;
those vwhich had been contributing, particularly the more affluent ones, should
increase their contributions. The Philippines had always supported the
humanitarian work of UNRVA and had responded, within its 1iodest means, to apreals
for increases in its voluntary contributions.

56. It was essential Tor UIRVA to reconsolidate its headquarters in the area of
operations, as reguested by the Ceneral Assembly the previous year, and as
nentioned by the Commissioner-Ceneral. He therefore hoped that, for the sake of
the Agency's effectiveness and in the interests of the refugees and the staflf,
consultations on the matter would be held with host Governments in the near future.

57. His delegation was concerned that the security situation in southern Lebanon
had continued to displace large numbers of both the Palestinian and Lebanese
populations. Indeed, up to an estimated 50,000 Palestinian refusees had been
displaced from the camps and elsevhere in southern Lebanon. The international
community should not tolerate such a dangerous situation, and should steadfastly
support Lebanon's efforts to defend its sovereignty and territorial integrity.
The staff of UNRVA should not be subjected to harassment or restrictions on their
wovements.

58, His delegation appreciated the offers of scholarships for higher education
made by various Governments to quelified Palestinian refugees, pursuant to General

/..



A/SPC/34/SR.10
Enplish
Page 12

(i, Verceles, Philippines)

Assembly resolution 33/112 C of 18 December 1978, and 32/90 A of 13 December 1977.
He hoped that more llember States would make similar offers.

59. There would be no just and enduring neace in the region until a political
solution, consistent with Security Council resolutions 242 (1967) and 338 (1973),
was devised, recognizing the right of the Palestinian people to exercise self-
determination and to independence in their homeland. It was imperative for
General Assembly resolution 194 (III) of 11 December 1948 to be implemented in all
its aspects. Pending such a solution, UNRVUA existed by mandate of the General
MAssembly and deserved continued support.

60. lirs. LYUNINGDAL (ilorway) said that the Commissioner-Ceneral's report presented
a comprehensive picture of UNDUA's activities during the past vear. It also
highlighted the difficulties with which the Agency had to cope. Several events in
UlTVA's area of operations had complicated its task, such as the displacement of a
large number of refugees in southern Lebanon, necessitating emergency programmes
and placing an additional administrative burden on the staff.

6l1. It was clear from the statement of the Commissioner-Ceneral and the Rerort of
the Vorking Groun on the Financing of UNRUA that finances continued to be a critical
problem. Income in 1979 had again been insufficient and upredictable, and her
Government regretted that it had not been possible during the year to secure a
broader participation in the financing of UMRVUA, as called for by General Assenbly
resolutions. The existing situation, with the major burden borne by a relatively
small number of countries was unsatisfactory. Services to the refugees had been
cradually cut back over a period of vears due to insufficient income and her
delegation iras therefore pleased to note that further reductions in the programmes
had been avoided during the past year due to last-minute special contributions by
sorle Governments. She was also glad that the Commissioner-General, upon receipt
of additional income, had decided to compensate the area staff in scme measure for
the rise in the cost of living. The staflf, who wvere themselves Palestinian
refugees, should not bear the brunt of the Agency's financial difficulties.

62, At the beginning of each year UNRWA was faced with a very large projected
deficit, and that situation would continue as long as its expected income vas
insufficient to cover its estimated budget expenditures. In her Government's view,
the Coumissioner-General had no alternative but to continue the existing practice
of reducing the Agency's rate of expenditure from 1 January to the level which
foreseeable income ould support until the end of the year. Tt would be
inconsistent with responsible management to continue all operations until UIIRVUA's
resources were approaching the point of exhaustion, and then to cease all operations
unless additional income vas forthcoming. That would almost certainly lead to

the collapse of the Agency, with serious consequences for the refuzees and the
staff.

63. The financial outloolk for 1900 gave rise to serious concern. UIRVA's
expenditure would continue to rise due to inflation and increased dermand for
education services. As the relief and health programmes had already been cut to
a minimum, any further reductions were bound to affect the education prosramme,
althourh education was essential for the future well-being of the Palestinians.

/oo



A/SPC/34/SR.10
Inglish
Page 13

(lirs. Lgpnnincdal, Jorvay)

Gh. It vas the responsibility of the entire international community to enable

ULIV/A to continue its services to the Palestinian refugees until & just and lasting
settlenent was achieved in the i/iddle ETast. Iler Govermuent wvould continue to
shoulder its responsibility, and vwould increase its contribution to UIRVA Tor

1960, She urged other Govermments in a position to do so also to particinate more
fully in the financing of UIIRUVA. Turther cutbacks in UIIRVA's services would have
serious consequences not only for the refugees, but also for the host countries

and for the prospects of a just and lasting peace.

65, ir. DOP:Q_I_T_(Israel)9 speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that he
agreed vith the representative of Canadas regarding the undesirable and unnecessary
politicization of the dehate. Instead of dealings vith the item on the agenda,
certain delepates had cone back into history with references to Theodor lerzl,
and had made vicious charges against Israel. Irag, in particular, had no right

to lecture his country. as its Government respected neither democracy nor human
richts. The authorities there had recently executed 10 political leaders.
including a Deputy Prime llinister who vas also a member of the Revolutionary
Command Council.

66, 1ir. TIAHOOD (Pakistan), speakin~ on a point of order, observed that those
remarks did not seem to have any connexion vith UNRVA.

67. llr. DORON (Israel), continuing his remarks, said that for years the répgime in
Irag had been brutally decimating the Kurds, a classic example of senocide.
iloreover, when resolution 181 (IT) had been adopted by the General Assembly in
1947, the then representative of Traq had placed his Covermment's name on record

as not recognizing the validity of the decision. Replying on 22 llay 1948

(document S/769) to a Security Council guestionnaire of 18 I'ay 1948 askins vhether
Arab States had armies operating in Palestine, Iraa had replied that it was in fact
maintaining forces there. At that time. the newv State of Israel was being
attaclked on all sides by its neighbours, and alsc by Iraca.

68, 1Hth regard to the memoirs of Yitzhak Rabin, mentioned in Tre Vev York Times
of 23 October 1979, he stated that it had clearly been impossible for Rabin to
leave the armed and hostile ponulace of Lod in the rear, where it could endanger
the supply route to the Yiftach Brigade. In both O Jerusalem by Larry Collins and
Dominique Lapierre and Genesis 1948, by Dan Kurzman, the eviction from Lod was
attributed to the local residents® opening fire on the Israelis shortly after
surrendering. In fact, it had been the deliberate policy of the Arab leaders to
force the population of Palestine to leave the area asgsizned to Israel. 1ith
recard to the statement ascribed to Ben Gurion, Golda lleir, in her autobiography,
related that he had subsequently berged the Arab refugees to return. They had
refused to do so, presumably not because they were frichtened of the Israelis, but
because they were terrified of being regarded as traitors to the Arab cause. On

6 August 1940, the Creek Catholic Archbishop of Galilee had stated in a Lebanese
newspaper that the Arab refugees were not afraid of a long exile, as their leaders
had promised to return armed in a few days to crush the Zionist gangs. In
February 1962, an eye-witness had told an American audience that the refugees had
been asked by the Arab High Command to leave the area for two weeks to male the

/R




A/BTC/3h/8T.10
In:;lish
Pape 1L

(.. Doron, Israel)

battle cagier. Yet the Jewish liayor of Jaffsa had asked them to come back, and
The Iistaclrut had distributed leaflets containine the care messace.

69. Having wagsed var against Israel from the beginning, Iraa and other Arab
States vhich vrere llembers of the United llations had voted asainst resolution

1oL (III), vhich vas not an zrticle of faith. Iraq still did not accept Cecurity
Council resolution 242 (1967), vhich hed been adopted unanimously 20 years loter.
That was typical of the Iragi attitude to Israel. It was further illustrated by
the statement of the Iragi Ambassador in “Terr Delhi on 24 October 1978 thot he aid
not eccept the existence of the Zionist “tate in Polestine and that the only
solution vas war, Iran's contribution to the refusees only amounted to $120,000
a year. It wvould therefore be better if ITrac refrained from giving advice.

0. The remarks of the revnresentative of the Soviet Union illustrated t
tendency of that country to write history in loose-leafl bindings. The Soviet
Deputy Foreign Tinister, Ir. ilalik, hed stated in the Security Council on

4 itarch 1049 that there was no reason to blame Israel for the Arab refupgees, 2s
the resronsibility for the problem leay with outside forces. An article in Pravde
oa 30 ley 1943 by a ir. Viktorov had stated that the operations by the Arab
States amounted to sheer unprovoked asgression. On 9 June 1918, Lovoye Vremyo
had stated that Soviet public opinion would condemn the Arab agcoression against
the State of Israel,

71. In Committee neetings like the present meeting, delegates freauently betrayved
abysmal ignorance ol the subject on the agenda, and nade it cleor that their
intention was not to contribute to the debate but to try to further their
countries' political ambitions in other areas of United Vatiouns activities. That
unfortunate phenomenon was not restricted to renresentatives of the ifiddle Fastern
countries.

T2, lr. JUSBEIBLH (Jordan), speaking in exercise of the richt of reply, said that
the revresentative of Israel had grossly distorted and misrepresented what head
occurred in the lives of the Palestinians in 1047 and 1948. Ee had been the
Assistant Director of the Palestine Broadcast System at that time and had
personally been in Nomallah vhen the people driven from Lydda (Lod), Ramle and the
surrounding villages hed arrived ezhausted and hungary after nearly three davys

of Torced march at gunpoint without ony vrovisions. The soue T0O soldiers assigned
to defend those tovms hod neen wrdered, and the civilians had remained defenceless
ageinst massacre or brutal cviction. Thus, the probler of the Palestinian refugees
had heen created., He hed visited the T5-rear-old layor of Ramle, vho had nade the
three-day trelr ond had confirmed the sufferins of those people: he had died a few
wreels later.

3. Vith repard to the article in The ilew Yorl: Times of 23 October 1979 concerning
the mewoirs of Yitzhalr Rabin, the fisure of 50,000 people, whom . Rabin said

had been expelled from their homes, should read 250,000, The 1950 report of the
United Wations Truce Supervision Orranization corroborated that Tigure.




A4/SPC/3L/ET,10
In/ lish
‘ere 15

( v. useibeh, Jordan)

T4, He drew attention to the fact that wost of the refucees had been expelled
privr to the end of the British mandate. In 1947, after the Arabs had nrotested
verbally at the United 'ations, Isreel had launched a massive attack against Arab
civilions,

75. Vith regard to the assertion of the representative of Israel that tlle Arabs
had not been prevented from returning to iheir homes he cited the example of the
viayor of Jaffa, who had tried to return on two occasions, once by land and once by
sea, and vho had been brutally turned back.

76. Security Council resolution 242 (1967), as everyone knewr, hed been pre--eupted
by events. Israel had already taken over the land and sequestered the peonle of
Palestine. It was therefore impossible to separate the political dimensions of
the problem from its human content.

T7. 1x. AUDEL DAL AT (Observer, Palestine Liberaticn Orpanization) pointed out
that The Tevw Yorkk Times article had revealed that llr. Rabin's memoirs had been
censored and thot the truth about vhat had happened to the Palestian Arabs in 1940
had vresumably been deleted. That raised a serious question about the credibility
of vhat Israell representatives had been telling the international community for

years.

76, He also drev attention to the hypocrisy vhich permeated 'r. Rebin's
interpretation of vnat had happened. Ilr. Rabin had said that the Israell soldiers
vho had been obliged to lead 50 000 people at gunnoint for 10 to 15 miles had felt
conscience=-stricken. He asked uembers ol the Committee to imagine how the people
vho had been forced to walk those miles had felt.

79. Uith rerard to the logic that hostile ponulations should he exwmelled, he
pointed out that such reasoning merely confirmed vhat the Delestinions had been
saving all along: that every Palestinian in Palestine was consid-red hostile by
the Israell occupiers. Israel had used the same logic to expel 15,000 people froi
the occupied Vest Bank and Gaza Strip, to derolish 22,000 houses and drive out an
additional 1,600 coimunity leaders. Any indigenous population subjected to
occupation was bound 1o be hostile to the occupier: on that basis, Israel sought
to expel every Palestinian from Palestine.

80. lr. AL-ATIYYAI (Irag), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, recalled
the renrescentative of Israel's assertion that Irac had refused to accept Security
Council resolution 2L2 (1987): he asked whether Israel had respected the 19L7
partition decision to create both a Jewish and a Palestinian State, or whether it
micht vish to accept that decision retroactively.

81. Uith regard to The Ilew Yorl Times article about 'r. DRabin's memoirs, he asled
vhether the representative of Israel was prepared to try to convince the Israeli
censors to accept his own interpretation of events. The elimination of censorship
in Isvael vould be proof of democracy and freedom of thought in that State Tounded
on racism and zionism.

/.o



r/sPC/34/8T. 10
Unglish
Pase 16

(r. M-ftiyyah, Irac)

82. 'The rerresentative of Israel had not addressed the real issue of the expulsion
of Arabs from Palestine. In that connexion, he guoted from an article published
acainst Arabs living in Haifa. in vhich 150 Arabs had bLeen killed and 200 more
wounded. He also guoted from a book entitled Seven Fallen Pillars, by

Jon Liuche, vhich stated that on 25 April 1948, the Jevs had conducted intensive
bombin: of Jaffa, creating terrible havoc and fear amons the Arab vopulation,
vhich had been obliged to flee; the Zionists hod then plundered the city. He
also guoted from the hool: entitled The Revolt, by Israeli Prime Tlinister
Lienachem Berin, describing how the Israelis had used explosives to reduce the
Jaffa police headnuarters to a lieap of rubble. Another book by Jon and

Pavid Limche, entitled Both Sides of the Hill, contained a description by

lloshe Dayan of the first attack on that city and of the fear which gripped the
30,000 Arab inhabitants. Iir. Dayan had reported that other Arab towns had
received the same treatuwent. Those descriptions of events had been confirmed in
ir., Tabin's memoirs.

03. Apart from the insults, directed against Irag, he asled whether the
revresentative of Israel had ever discussed UIIMVA or how Israel planned to

surport the Agency.

OL. ir. ZKEVICIUS (Union of Soviet Socialist Lepublics), speaking in exercise
of the rizht of reply, reminded the representative of Israel that the vear was
1979 and that the sooner the Israeli authorities realized that their policy of
refusing to allow the Palestinian people to exercise their rights and of expelling
then foreibly from their homes vas shortsishted, the sooner a genuine and lasting
peace could be established in the 17iddle East.

85. i'r. DOROII (Israel). speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that the
remarls of the Soviet representative merely confirmed what he himself had said
with regard to the way in which the Soviet Union rewrote history.

86, With repard to the comments mede by the representative of Iraqg, he pointed
out that nobody could reverse the vheel of history. The Arab States had rejected
General Assembly resolution 194 (III) and Security Council resolution 242 (1967).
In that connexion, the TIraqi Prirme "inister had been cuoted as having said in 1043
that Irac would smash Isreel vith its guns ard vould destroy every place the Jevs
sought shelter, and that the Arabs should go to safer areas until the fighting had
died dowun.

87. The representative of Jordan's eye-witness account might be true but the
Tipure of 250,000 people he had cited only confirmed hov figures concerning the
Palestinian refugees vere juggled in an irresponsible manner. As for the guestion
of why the Arab villagers had left their homes, he drew attention to a book written
by Toslem leader I'uhanmad *Ti-r Al [Thalih, entitled Consequences of the Catastrophe,
vhich described a situation in which an Arab legion officer, in other words, a
nember of the Jordanian Army, had supervised the evacuation of the Arab villages

of Tira. loreover, the Jordanian daily newspaper Ad-Difa’ of 6 September 1954 had
reported that the Arab Governments had told the Arab villagers to leave so that the

/...




A/SPC/3h/SR.10
Tn;lish
Pase 17

(i.c. Doron, Israel)

£rab Coverniients could come in and that the villagers had left but the Arab
Governilents had not entered the village. He was certain the representative of
Jordan regretted that cvacuation order and its consecuences,

88. 1ir. IUSEIBLH (Jordan), spealinc in exercise of the risht of reply, pointed
out that the village referred to by the representative of Israel lay vithin the
Triancle, vhich ran from ilablus to Jenin to Tulkarm, which was the original
Palestinien homeland and viaich the Palestinians should never heve lost. At that
time, Israel had issued an ultimetum ordering the evacuation of the villare of
Tira, and threatening that the Israelis would invade the vhole Triangle,
President Trumen had been asked to intervene, but had refused. That was why
Jordanian officers had supervised the evacuation of Tira. Israel had nerely
implemented its premeditated plan forcibly to expel all Palestinians.

80. A just and comprehensive settlement could still be achieved by the
establishment of a Palestinian Arab State which would enable the Palestinians to
excrcise their inalienable right to return to their homes, in accordance with
General Assembly resolution 194 (III). Trag had not refused to accept that
resolution; indeed, no Arab country had refused to accent that resolution.

00. The CHAIRMAN announced that Kuvait and Pakistan had joined the co-sponsors
of draft resolution A/SPC/3L4/L.5 and that the Comuittee had received another draft
resolution. vhich would be circulated as document AJSPC/3L/L.T.

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m.




